
 
 
 
 
 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY 
 

ANNUAL 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4.30PM 14 MAY 2009 
 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 
 

AGENDA



 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Council 

Date: 14 May 2009 

Time: 4.30pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: All Councillors 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the 
BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL to 
transact the under-mentioned business. 

 Prayers will be conducted in the Council 
Chamber at 4.20pm by Reverend Stephen Terry 

Contact: Mark Wall 
Head of Democratic Services 
01273 291006 
mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

1. STATUTORY OR VOLUNTARY DISCLOSURE BY COUNCILLORS OF 
INTERESTS IN MATTERS APPEARING ON THE AGENDA. 

 

 

2. MAYORAL REPORT 2008-2009.  

 Report of the Director of Strategy & Governance (copy to be circulated). 
 

 

 Contact Officer: Pat Dines Tel: 29-1223  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

3. ELECTION OF THE MAYOR OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE MUNICIPAL 
YEAR 2009/2010. 

 

 

4. ELECTION OF THE DEPUTY MAYOR OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/2010. 

 

 

5. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS.  

 

6. REVIEW OF POLITICAL BALANCE AND APPOINTMENT OF 
COMMITTEES, SUB-COMMITTEES, FORUMS AND OUTSIDE BODIES. 

1 - 6 

 Report of the Acting Chief Executive:- 
 
(i) To consider and agree the report of the Acting Chief Executive on 

the allocation of seats between the political groups, including the 
appointment of Chairmen, Deputy Chairmen and Opposition 
Spokespersons to the various committees and forums and the 
appointment of representatives on outside bodies for 2009/10 (copy 
attached). 

 
Note:  Appendices 2, 3 and 4 to the report will be circulated prior to 

the meeting once notification of the nominations has been 
received from the respective Groups. 

 
(ii) (a)  That with regard to (i) above and subject to (b) and (c) below, 

all Members of the Council be appointed as Substitute 
Members of each Committee of the Council in accordance with 
Standing Orders. 

 
 (b)  No Member may act as a Substitute Member of the Planning 

Committee or the Personnel Committee unless he/she has 
received the appropriate training to enable them to serve on 
the respective Committee and no Member may act as a 
Substitute in relation to the Standards Committee. 

 

 



COUNCIL 

 (c)  There are restrictions on membership of the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees as set out in the Overview & Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules. 

 
(iii) That the existing co-optees on the Planning Committee, the Children 

& Young People Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Health 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee be re-appointed, providing that the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission may appoint additional non-voting 
co-optees to the Children & Young People Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
(iv) That those appointments listed in appendix 3 being the responsibility 

of the Executive will be made by the Leader of the Council. 
 

 Contact Officer: Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

7. APPOINTMENTS.  

 (a) To note the appointments to the following positions as agreed by the 
various Groups represented on the Council: 
 
Leader of the Conservative Group – Councillor Mary Mears 
Leader of the Labour Group - Councillor Gill Mitchell 
Convenor of the Green Group - Councillor Bill Randall 
Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group - Councillor Paul Elgood 
 

(b) To agree to the appointment of Councillor Gill Mitchell (being the 
Leader of the largest opposition Group), as the Leader of the Official 
Opposition. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COUNCIL 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next ordinary 
meeting is 12 noon on the fifth working day before the meeting (9th July 2009). 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At 
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed. 
 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 
1988. Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy (Guidance for Employees’ on the BHCC website). 
 
Therefore by entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting tables 
you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members 
of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the public gallery 
area. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Head of Democratic Services or 
the designated Democratic Services Officer listed on the agenda. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Mark Wall, (01273 
291006, email mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk.  
 

 
Date of Publication - Wednesday, 6 May 2009 

 

 

Acting Chief Executive 
 
King’s House 
Grand Avenue 
Hove   
BN3 2LS
 





COUNCIL 
 

14 May 2009 

Agenda Item 6 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 
Subject: Review of Political Balance and Appointment of 

Committees, Sub-Committees, Forums and Outside 
Bodies. 
 

Date of Meeting: 14 May 2009 
 

Report of: Acting Chief Executive 
Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 291006 
 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
Wards Affected: All  

 
For General Release  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The Council is required at, or as soon as practicable after, each Annual Meeting of 

the Council to review the allocation of seats to political groups. 
 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to appoint or re-appoint the Committees and Forums 
of the Council and membership thereof and to consider and appoint 
representatives to various Outside Bodies for the ensuing municipal year or in 
accordance with the period of office for the respective Body. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the allocation of seats as detailed in the report and in appendix 1 to the 

report be approved; 
 
2.2 That accordingly, the council appoints/re-appoints its Committees with the sizes 

and allocation of seats between political groups as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report; 

 
2.3 That having received nominations to the Committees from the Chief Whips of the 

4 political groups, as detailed in appendix 2 to the report, (to be circulated 
separately), such nominations be agreed and the committee places filled 
accordingly; 
 

2.4 That in having regard to 2.3 above, those Members listed as Chairman, Deputy 
Chairman and Opposition Spokesperson of the respective Committees and Sub-
Committees  in appendix 2 (to be circulated separately) be appointed to those 
positions; 

 
2.5 Note that in having regard to the Council’s constitution and the adoption of the 

Leader & Cabinet model under the provisions of the Local Government & Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007, the Leader of the Council shall appoint 
members/representatives to various bodies listed in Appendix 3 (being 

1



 

appointments that are the responsibility of the Executive and circulated 
separately). 

 
2.6 That having received nominations for the appointments to the list of Outside 

Bodies from the Chief Whips of the 4 political groups as detailed in appendix 4 to 
the report, (to be circulated separately), such appointments be agreed; 

 
 

3. BACKGROUND/INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The political composition of the Council is Conservative (26 Members), Labour (13 

Members), Green (12 Members), Liberal Democrat (2 Members) and Independent 
(1 Member); Section 15(1) of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 requires 
the Council to review the representation of the different political groups on 
committees and sub-committees: 

 

• At, or as soon as practicable after, the Annual Meeting of the Council or, 
 

• Where notice is received of a change in the composition of political groups. 
 

3.2 The Acting Chief Executive is under a duty; whenever such a review takes place, 
to submit a report to the Council showing what allocation of seats would in his/her 
opinion best meet the requirements of Section 15 of the 1989 Act. 
 

3.3 The Council’s duty to determine the allocation of seats is prescribed by Section 15 
of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 (specifically sub-sections (3) to (5).  
These do not impose any specific requirement on the Council to consult the 
political groups as to which committee seats should be allocated to which group – 
this only applies to the actual appointment of Members to particular seats once 
they are allocated to political groups. 
 

3.4 It is clearly preferable if all Groups have an agreed position as to which committee 
allocations are to be adjusted, provided that the agreed position does not conflict 
with the Council’s duty, which is “to make only such determinations as give effect, 
so far as reasonably practicable, to the principles specified in sub-section (5).” 
 

3.4.1 In summary, these principles of determination (“principles”), are that: 
 
(a) All seats are not allocated to the same Group, 
(b) The majority of the seats go the Group (if any) which has an overall 
 majority on the Council (i.e. more than 27 seats), 
(c) Subject to the above two principles, that the number of seats on the 
 total of  all the committees/sub-committees allocated to each Group 
 bears the same proportion to the proportion on the Full Council, and  
(d) Subject to (a) and (c), that the number of seats on each 
 committee/sub-committee allocated to each Group bears the same 
 proportion to the proportion on the Full Council. 
 

 
 
 
 

2



 

 
 
 Overall Political Group split on the Council 
 
3.5 The political groups have the following seats on the Council: 

 
Party Seats Calculation  % 
 
Conservative  26  26/54 48.14 
Labour  13  13/54 24.07 
Green  12  12/54 22.22 
Lib Dem    2    2/54   3.70 

 
3.6 There is also one Independent Member on the Council and it has been a 

convention to allocate available seats on committees/sub-committees to such 
Members if any remain available following the allocations to the respective 
Groups. 

 
 Independent   1  1/54    1.85 
  

Total   54  99.98% 
 

 
 Committee Sizes 

 
3.7 The total number of committee places used for the determination of the allocation 

of seats to the political groups is 97 as detailed in appendix 1. (Note that the 
Political Balance Regulations do not apply to the Licensing Committee (2003 Act) 
and therefore only the 15 seats for the Licensing Committee are included in the 97 
seats to be allocated).  
 

3.8 The proposed allocation of places on each of the committees as detailed in 
Appendix 2 to the report takes into account the principles referred to in paragraph 
3.4.1 in that: 
 
(a) The Conservative Group’s overall allocation equals  47 seats, 
(b) The Labour Group’s overall allocation equals 23 seats, 
(c) The Green Group’s overall allocation equals 22 seats, 
(d) The Liberal Democrat Group’s overall allocation equals 4 seats, 
(e) The Independent Member’s overall allocation equals 1 seat. 

 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The Leaders of the four political groups have been consulted on the proposed 

allocations and notification of nominations for committee membership and 
appointments to outside bodies will be provided after the respective Annual Group 
Meetings.  Details of these nominations will be listed in appendices 2 and 4, which 
will be tabled at the Council meeting. 

 
 
 

3



 

 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications other than in relation to the payment of special 

responsibility allowances to the respective post holders. 
 

 Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date: 5 May 2009 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The proposals in this report comply with the requirements of the Local Government & 

Housing Act 1989. 
 
 There are no specific issues relevant to the Human Rights Act arising from the report. 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Abraham Ghebre-Ghiorghis Date: 5 May 2009 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
5.3 There are no equalities implications arising from the report. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
5.4 There are no sustainability implications arising from the report. 
 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  
5.5 There are no specific implications arising from the report. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
5.6 There are no specific implications arising from the report. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
5.7 There are no specific implications arising from the report. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 - Committee seat allocations; 
Appendix 2 - Chairmen, Deputy Chairmen, Opposition Spokespersons and Committee 

membership nominations; 
Appendix 3 - Leader’s appointments; 
Appendix 4 - Outside Bodies’ nominations. 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 

1. None 

 
Background Documents 

 
1. Local Government & Housing Act 1989 
2. Local Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

4



 MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES  Appendix 1 
2009/2010 

 

Council 09  

 
Committee /  

Sub-Committee 

No. 
Seats 

Conservative Labour Green Lib Dem Independent 

 

Governance 10 5 2 2 1  

Audit 10 5 2 2 1  

Licensing* 15 8 3 3 1  

Planning 12 6 3 3   

       

Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

10 4 2 2 1 1 

Adult Social Care & Housing 
Overview & Scrutiny 

8 4 2 2   

Children & Young People 
Overview & Scrutiny 

8 4 2 2   

Culture, Tourism & 
Enterprise Overview & 
Scrutiny  

8 3 3 2   

Environment & Community 
Safety Overview & Scrutiny 

8 4 2 2   

Health Overview & Scrutiny  8 4 2 2   

Total 97 47 23 22 4 1 

5



 MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES  Appendix 1 
2009/2010 

 

Council 09  

Licensing 2003Act* - has the 
same membership as 
Licensing and does not come 
into the equation for the 
allocation of seats 

15 8 3 3 1  

     

Other Bodies       

Standards Committee 6 3 2 1   

Personnel Committee 3 1 1 1   

 

6


	Agenda
	6 Review of Political Balance and Appointment of Committees, Sub-Committees, Forums and Outside Bodies.

